

FORT SANTIAGO, HISTORY OF

MISC - 13

DECLASSIFIED
Authority 11/10 883078

RECORDS-DEPOSITORY

TEAM LEADER

History of

CONTENTS

Fort Santiago

History of Fort Santiago

Map and Legend During Japanese Occupation

Sketch and Description of Fort Santiago Gate or Archway

History of Santo Domingo Church

Pre-War Map of Intramuros (Walled City)

Published by the AGRD Officers' Club Entertainment Committee.

The historical old fortwess of Manila, overlooking the mouth of the Pasis River, was more than time hundred and fifty years, the stronghold of the Spanish military forces in Manila. I that been under the flags of four different nations and possibly fifth, if the new Republic of the Philippings eventually takes control of the Fort and makes a ground. The Fort stands on near the site of the original fortwent of the first stands on near the site of the original fortwent of the results of the first stands of the first stands of the control to the first stands of the principal fortwent the city in 1570. The brilding of the present Fort was begin in 1582 and had undergone very little change, since its completion, prior to the destruction caused by the reoccupation of American Forces in World War II.

Fort Santiago derives, its name from the patron saint of Spain, Suntiago de Apostol and % Is well to note too, this the second Spanish Governor of the Frilippines, and under whose direction the first stense of the fort were laid, was named Santiago de Vera, The Fort is rich in traditions and many stories or accounts are related of the use to which its must wells, chambers, and under ground dungeon were put. It is well known too, that Dr. Jose Kital, the Fillippin martry, was imprisoned there on his last day before being led to his execution on the Old Lunets on December 30, 1266.

The first American flag was raised officially in Fort Santiago on August 13, 1988, and a plaque to commencente this eventful day rests atop the rame leading up to what is now Fort Santiago Theater, located at the Southwest corner of the Forts.

Since the reoccupation by American Forces the Fort has served as a Transportation Corps Depot, servicing all army vessels in this theater.

HISTORY OF FORT SANTIAGO

In relating an account or brief history of Fort Santiago, we must go back to the twelfth century when the first fearless mariner discovered a chain of islands across the Chima sea inhabitated by "Sarcesons", He reported these as peaceful people, but the next account of them tells of Sulu pirates and "savages" who lived by fighting and plunder.

When Magallanes (Magellan) again discovered the Islands in 1521, he found a people who know how to fight, and lost his life at their hands on Mactan Island near the Island of Gebu. On a second expedition headed by Lagaspi, a spanish settlement was established on the Island of Cebu. Great difficulty was had in maintaining peace with the inhabitants, so when report was received of a large island called Luzon with a great bay and a sturdy people, Legaspi dispatched an expeditionary force under command of Captain Martin de Goiti and Juan de Salcedo to investigate. When this expedition arrived in the year 1570 opposite the town of Manila, a rude but strong wooden palisade was already erected by the natives at the south side of the mouth of the Pasig River, and there were twelve bronze cannon, of native manufacture, mounted for the defense of the place. All of this furnishes good ground for belief that Fort Santiago has a history that may be traced back past the dawn of Modern Philippine history to the time when the first group of Malayans were gathered by the Pasig under the leadership of a Mohammedan Rajah, and built a log enclosure for defense against other peoples about them. The mouth of the river was always the strategic position of the whole country, and on that same spot Fort Santiago stands today as a monument to the Philippine Islands.

Accounts differ a little as to just what happened when Salomdo's expedition sailed into the buy of Manila Fr Juan do la Conception says that Rajah Soliman rallied his forces and manned his twelve bromes guns in the paliande and made a goodly dafense of the place, but the besigners were victorious and set fire to the city and afterward captured Cavite, Another account states that surrender was made without opposition, the camnon were captured and taken to Fanay, a treaty was made and signed in blood by Saleedo and Rajah Soliman, and the expedition returned to Colu.

When Legampi, adelantado or knight-proprietor of the Philippines, heard of the fine location and great bay of Manila, he at once made preparations to shift his headquarters, and in April 1571, he took the city, and found it empty, as the inhabitants had fled after setting fire to their houses.

Legard soon placated the Eajah, and on May 19, 1571 founded the city of Hamila, and the written history of Fort Santiago began. The old palisade mas at once strengthemed, and the natives were commanded to build a wall about the place, and to event quarters for the governor and the soldiers, but the work was not accomplished until the new governor, Santiago de Vern, seeing the need for more stable protection than a wall of states, cleared the ground and laid the first stones of the fort that bears his name. These stones are still in the wall, though difficult to identify at the present time.

When Governor Dasmarinas arrived in 1590 he brought instructions from the king of Spain to fortify the place so as to insure it against all attacks by land or sea and at once set about the work. His first construction was that of the circular wall still standing in front of the parapet of the fort itself. Fort Santiago was originally built by the Spaniards when they settled and built the town of Manila, Manila, as it was first laid out, consisted roughly of a triangular city, composed of the typical churches, homes, shops, etc. The entire city was enclosed by a wall roughly 20 feet in height and approximately 10 to 20 feet in thickness at the base. The walls were surmounted by guard walks to provide easy coverage for sentries. Bastions or gun positions were included in the general plan to provide complete enfalade or covering fire by artillery. The city was settled on the bay, now known as Manila Bay, and ordered by the Pasig River. The apex of the city was Fort Santiago, situated so that it covered both the river mouth and the bay. The geographical conditions of that day were somewhat different from the present time insofar as the boundaries of the bay are concerned. A student of military affairs today would be somewhat puzzled by the position of the Fort because the Bay is now some 1,000 yards distant. However, when the Fort was built the Bay came directly below the walls of the Fort on the South bordering roughly the line of what is now Bonifacio Drive, and the river, as it does now, ran directly below the opposite wall, At one time, a most completely encircled the landward side of the Fort.

Fort Sentiago, being the apex and main line of defense the city was the center of Pomnich military activity in the old walled city, and as such was heartly fortified. Even today old solid shot common balls may be found in abundance around the Fort. During the times of the Spanish Inquisition, the dumageous of the Fort were used by the church tribumals for the state of the Spanish Inquisition, the dumageous of the Fort was used by the church tribumals for the state of the Spanish Inquisition, the dumageous and cells were provided in abundance. The river (Panis River) side of the Fort has walls that rise shearly 35 feet above the river. Those were the walls that housed the Water Cells, where unfortunate prisoners were

placed in the evening at low tide, and removed again in the morning, dead thru drowning, All of these cells have now been scaled off but evidences of them can still be found despite the blastings of modern warfare.

"La Real Fuersa de Santiago", (the royal stronghold of a Suntiago), as Governor Desamiras left it, consisted of a straight grey front projecting into the river mouth, an open up latform above was supported by arches and called the "Battery de Santa Barbare", in honor of the patron saint of all good artillerists, à lower ther of fire was afforded through embrasures in the casements formed by the archine the plants of the same of the same and the same and the same archiver and the same and the same archiver afterward filled in and the embrasures closed and the outrain wall Rednig the city was changed to a bestion.

Many strange stories have been told about the Spanish occupation of the Fort up to the time of the American occupation. Old Spaniards living in Manila shake their heads wisely and intimate that if they were to tell all they know, it would be an astonishing story indeed. How much they really know is a question, but certain it is that the people held a great fear of the old place. As far as the walls are concerned, there is some foundation for the stories. There are storerooms and magazines, and the outer curtains are connected with the main walls in some cases by underground passages, or were, before these tunnels were destroyed. The filling of the old most closed them probably forever. When the wall at the end of Calle Aduana was removed, the inner chamber was found filled with human skeletons. There were however, under ground passages and deep-built cells in the fort itself. When the Americans took charge of the Fort numerous lower passages and cells, some considerably below the level of the water in the river, were discovered. There was also a movable gate by which the water could be admitted from the river, and all the evidence pointed to the use of these cells in the same manner and for similar ends ad such devices were used in Europe at the contemporary period; that is, for the harsh handling of enemies of the king. There are many people who affirm that there are underground passages leading "Back as far as the old Army and Navy Club", but not one knows where to find the secret door to the hidden chambers. There are many of the opinion that slave labor, procured from raids on small native villages were used in the building and construction of the Fort and Walled City, and that these laborers were either worked to death or killed upon completion of the work, so that they might not reveal the secret of the underground passages and cells.

Of some of the stories told, is the one of a women walled up in one of the lower chambers with a bely born the day she entered. When the Americans came sixteen years later they found her with her sixteen-years old child, who had never been outside the midnight cell. Another political prisoner was to have been drowned, but in the excitement of the events preceding the surrender of the place, he was forgotten, and the Americans found his a reving maniac, having had no food for twelve wasks. In other chambers were found skeletons telling their gasely that a tip. The continue of commentary. Evenge noise used the other chambers were found to be about the chambers when the chambers were found to be about the chambers when the chambers were found to be about the chambers when the chambers were found to be about the chambers when the chambers were found to be about the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers which were considered to the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers which were considered to the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers which are chambers and the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers when the chambers were considered tone the chambers when the chambers were considered to the chambers

Four flags have floated over Fort Santiago, For three hundred and twenty-eight years the Spenish ensign was unfurled to the tropic breeze, except for the brief time when the British flag supplanted that of the lords of the islands named after their discoverors and conquerors.

The unfurling of the third flag begins with the Americans The of Fort Santiago, on August 33, 1969, shortly affor the Spenish-Moorican War. Even in this short and comparatively quiet was, Fort Santiago played a major part that is no always fully appreciated, When Admiral Dewey sailed into Manile Bay the state of the American Santiano of the Santiano to the country of the American Santiano of Languistic that results were poor considering that solid shot was used egainst "modern" battleships.

If Fort Santiago has no other cause for renown, the event of 1898 would be reason enough to make it famous. In the inn court General Merritt met the Spanish Governor-General on the memorable 13th of August and arranged the preliminary agreement for the surrender of the panish citadel of the Orient. The American troops were in the city and the insurgents were outside, disappointed because they were not admitted to equal rights with the Americans. The Spaniards were disarmed, and the people lived in quaking terror of what the morning might bring, for the tales of what occurred when the British sacked the city in 1762 were enough to cause a shudder. For a week no one ventured out of his house; but none of the terrible things came to pass. There was no pillage, no bloodsheds, no rapine nor plundering. The astonishment of the natives knew no bounds. Every American has reason to be proud of this conquest of old Fort Santiago. After the American flag raising ceremony a formal military review and parade was held, and the control of the Islands was turned over to the first American Governor-General of the Philippines, Grover Cleveland-William McKinley, later to become President of the United States.

In that period after the War, Manila became one of the most important Foreign Army Fosts. The headquarters of the Philippine Section of the US Army was Fost Santiago. One of the first commanders of the Philippine Readquarters was General Arthur Mearthur, feather of the present Commanding General of the Far Eastern Command, The military Features of the old fort were abendoned, office buildings were erected on top of the wall, and it was thought it would never be used as a fortress again.

Then came Norld Nat II, the bombing of Pearl Harbor, and the informal arrival of Japanese troops in Isania to place the Philippines under the rule of a fourth flag, "The Rising Sum". Upon this arrival of the Japanese Army in Manila in January 1942, many officers of the U.S. Army in the Philippines were trapped in Fort Santiago. The Japa were quick to appreciate the possibilities of the Fort, with its old torture chambers and dumpons. Hany a high of the property of the prope

The Headquarters of the Military Police of the Philippines was in Fort Santiago, and its cells were soon packed solid with prisoners. Natives of Manila have called this "The Blood Stain of the Philippines". Here was the center of the highly coordinated and extremely efficient torture groups of the Japanese Army. Cells were crowded and filthy. Drinking water was in abundance, but usually just out of reach of the prisoners. The "water cure" was a speciality here. (The forcing of water into the body thru the mouth or rectum). Beatings too, or suspension by the thumbs or toes. Not just rumored tortures, but facts substantiated by men who suffered here for months. But those who are still alive to tell their stories are a distinct minority. If a POW or Concentration Camp was too good for you, you went to Fort Santiago. The number of men who died here can not be calculated. Hundreds of bodies, decomposed beyond recognition, were burned when the American Forces moved into the Fort. Germany had its incinerators at Belson, and other infamous camps; Santiago too has its burn't offerings. One cell under the main bastion of the Fort was apparently used for this purpose, and even today in July of 1947, it may be seen with charred bones covering its floor to an unknown depth. Human ashes to a depth of many feet. And behind it is another dungeon, reached by an opening only 24 inches in size, and behind this still other cells, all of which still have the stench of death. The once magnificent Old Fort was left a mass of broken wreckage and twisted structures, littered with the bodies of dead Japanese and Filipinos covered over by debris. Even many months after the war with Japan had ceased, dead bodies were . being discovered in the rubble and ruins. The walls of the old Fort were pitted and broken, its buildings with very few exceptions are gone and the ones left are no longer recognizable. The famous old Spanish Archway with its ornate carvings still stands but has been demolished almost beyond a point of recognition. The trees, gardens, and all its beautiful landscaping is gone, but the old Fort, the Bloodstain of the Philippines is still here.

Authority 4NO 883078

On 30 November 1946, Metional Horses Day as dedicated by the Philippine Rapublic, saidet corresony ad prayer, a National Monusent was exected inside Fort Santiage in the description occupied by the building serving as Quarters and Description of Description of Legend). This monument was exected above the burial Grouper (2) of Legend). This monument was exected above the burial of some 600-700 boddes found throughout the Fort and in the cells and believed to be the bodies of Filipines who died as a result of Japanese treatment in Fort Santiage.

The Fort was first occupied as a permanent home by the Transportation Corps in May of 1945 and was designated as the TC General Depot. The TC General Depot redesignated as the Transportation Depot PHILARCOM is still occupying the Fort and performing its mission of supplying all army vessels in this theater with material necessary for operation, under the guidance of its Commanding Officer, Lt. Calonel A. Annan Cook.

LEGEND

- A. Major Nishimura's Office Manila Unit -
 - B. Stairways C. Adjutant's Office
 - Underground Cells
- Cells Investigation Room, electric torture (2) Quarters room, hanging, water cure (Where General Lim was tortured)
 - A. Detention Cell
 - B. Investigation Room Water cure torture
 - C. Mess Hall (for Japs)
 - D. Corridor E. Detention Cells
 - F. Detention Cells
 - G. Detention Cells & Torture Room H. Detention Cells
- (3) Garage
- Quarters and Infirmary and Cells Underground (Where alleged (4) 8 assailants of President Laurel were tortured to death)
 - A. Detention Cell
 - B. Quarters
 - C. Infirmary D. Doctor's Quarters
 - E. Under ground and Second Floor Cells, torture Chamber, Investigation Room.
- (5) Officer's Quarters
 - (R) Rizal's Cell
 - Kitchen
- Tagalog Class Room for Japs and Lecture Room
- (8) Arch Inside are JapeQuarters
- (9) Garago (10) Bath House
- (11) Stable
- (12) Detention Cells 16 in all where the following were detained: (different dates - 1943)
 - General Lim Cell No. 4 Gen. Grant - Unknown cell at Bldg. (12), Bldg. (15)
 - he occupied cell No. 1 prior to transfer Col. Alejandro Santos - Cell No. 1 occupied cell
 - No. 1 in Bldg. No. (15) Col. Thorpe - Cell No. 5 - occupied cell No. 4
 - in Bldg. No. (15) Col. H. Straughn - unknown cell - occupied cell
 - No. 1 in bldg. No. (15)
 - Col. Nakar & 11 Filipinos Coll No. 13 Col. Arthur King Noble - unknown cell

(13) Detention Cell, water cure

Ladies' and Men's bath, serves as torture chamber (14)

(15) adm Building - National Division - Office of Col. Nagahama and Filipino informers. GROUND FLOOR - a, b, c, d, e, cells occupied prior to transfer to Eldg. (12) of Col. Straughn, Col. Santos, Col. Thorpe, Gen. Grant, Col. Makar, Capt. Barker,

Col. Noble. Martin Moses. F. Quarters

Office

G. Toilet H. Guard

(16) Quarters

Tool Shed (18) Repair Shop

Shed

(20) Shed

Faucet (for prisoner)

(22) Guardhouse (23) (24) Barracks

Main Gate (25)

Vegetable Gardens grown by prisoners for Japs (26) Vegetable Gardens grown by prisoners for Japs (27) Vegetable Gardens grown by prisoners for Japs

The following prisoners were brought to old Bilibid, then to Muntinglupa, and back to old Bilibid. Later on they were brought to the North Gem metery, their fate still unknown:

Gen. Lim - (uncertain)

Gen. Grant Col. Straughn

Col. Thorpe Col. Nakar

Col. Martin Moses 6. Col. Arthur King Noble

Capt. Barker

The following survived:

Col. Santos

2. Manuel Floriaga 3. Antonio Quirino

Gabriel Mendoza 5. Dr. Bautista 6. Feliciano Pamintuan

7. Congressman Jesus Serrano

Lorenzo Lorma

9. Lucas Villacrucis F. Lao

SOURCES OF INFORMATION; Former civilian prisoners, USAFFE officers and enlisted men, and guerillas.

GATE OF FORT SANTIAGO

Upon entering into the original Fort Santiago, as first completed by the Spaniards, can be viewed the remains of what was once the beautiful archway or Gate, leading into the old fortress. It is truly significant as an Arch de Triumphe as the armies of every conquering nation has passed beneath it's magnificence. The beauty of it's situation, the richness of it's architectural treasure and the enchantment which proceeds from it's past grandeur, can with regret, be viewed in a state of destruction and decay. The attached sketch shows in outline only, the archway as it appeared several years ago, a perfect reminiscence of the grandeur of Spain three centuries ago. In the tower of the arch is engraved the Patron Saint of Spain, "Santiago de Apostol", after whom the Fort was named. The famous Patron can be seen riding on his charger ready to give the final blow to his vanquished foes. In the center of the arch is the Coatof-Arm of Spain, which is the symbol of colonization and Spanish dominance three centuries ago. On each side of the arch is depicted a Spanish soldier and a lion, a true symbol of the strength and power of Spain during the height of her glory.

Authority NNO 883078

U DECLASSIFIED
Authority ALAO SE3078 00001:1

HEADQUARTERS PHILIPPINES COMMAND

15 Mar 49

A CERTIFIC THE EXTRACT COFF
FILE Se: 999-2-24
TITIEF Reference cases of Fort Santiago Massacre
OKNOIL: Fort Santiage, F.I.
DATES: 194-45
AUTHORITOTT:
SOUNCE: Investigation Section
FAGE: 2

November 1944. During this latter period of time she was tortured by having to sit for 24 hours a day without talking. She was forced to undress persons died each day in the Bilibid Prison.

The stated that 21 or more persons died each day in the Bilibid Prison.

The following information, as related by Mrs. Maria Martinez, is based on hearsay:

The Furt Santiage Mensors occurred between Christmas and New Year of 1944. 3000 people were terrured and their de doath. These persons were besten and beyoneted. Mose were she forest free the customary practice. The water cure was administrately free the state of t

Submitted beweith and made a part of this report of investigation are affidiently of Jose Tepacie Muene, Hermoscolide at Atlanes, Antere Dg Sines and Erzest Stanley. There is also attached and and a part of this report any article entitled Story of Fort Santiage' which appeared in the March 3, 1945 issue of the Free Fhilipplanes, a Munila Hewspeer, Also submitted are signed statements of Aurelle L, Lucero, Scrafin Aquine, M.F. Tauwaugee and an Affidavit of Trimes Demonacofo.

/s/ R.W.B.

A CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT COPY.

and TA

Inclosure G

COPY

File: 999-23-4

Title: Reference cases of Fort Santiago Massacre

Origin: Fort Santiago, P. I.

Classification:

Authenticity:

Source: Investigation Section

Extracted by DFD Date 23 Dec 45 Microfilmed Date

EXTRACT, Page 2.

With For's Smidings Massacre occurred between Christens and Her Scar of 19ths, 3000 people were cotwired and starved to death. These persons were beaten and beyometed. Here were shot for towhere were the customary practice. The water care was administerated by forcing a tabe up the rectum and allowing water to enter untill the image were filled, thereby causing the death by checking. Burning was also used to kill prisoners. The man in charge of such torture methods were Captain and against Missianers. 3000 new were taken from meighboring prisons and gathered at Fort Sauthago and were killed by torture and burning. Most of these were beyometed to death. He can encaped the massacres. The reason for this brutality was the repeated describen advanced by at and the possible landing of American Forces on lingon."

/s/ R.W.B.

Extracted by: 2 Mar 49, AGRD

> /s/ John H. Barr /t/ JOHN H. BARR Investigator

Inclosure

Someone can of talk of O P X of A amon Can bear to

APO 900
FORT SANTIAGO
M. Mila

HISTORY OF FORT SANTIAGO 26 November 1947

Souvenir copy of talk giver by Lt Col A. Annan Cook Depot Commander of the Philrycom Trusportation Depot, at the monthly meeting of the Manila Chapter, Army Transportation Association,

CONTENTS

This paphlet has been assembled at the direction of the Commanding Officer Fhilproom Transportation Service (Lt Col. Joshus R. Messersmith) by the Commanding Officer of the Fhilproom Transportation Dept (Lt. Col. A. Amman Cock), outling the historical events in which Fort Santiago Played such an important role in the development of the new Republic of the Philippines.

Fort Santiago

History of Fort Santiago

Map and Legend During Japanese Occupation

Sketch and Description of Fort Santiago Gate or archway

History of Santo Domingo Church

Pre-Mar Map of Intramuros (Walled City)

FORT SANTTAGO

The historical old fortress of Vanile, overlooking the mouth of the Pasis River, was more than three hundred and fifty years, the stronghold of the Spenish military forces in Manile. It has been under the flags of four different nations and possibly fifth, if the new Republic of the Philippines eventually takes control of the Fort and makes of it, a monument to a spectacular and bloodstained historical back ground. The Fort stands on mear the site of the original fortune of the control of the con

Fort Santiago derives its name from the outron spint of Spain, Santiago de Apostol end it is well to note too, that the second Spanian Covernor of the Philippines, and under whose ditection the freat schoes of the fort were loid, was mend Santiago de Vale. The Tort is right in traditions and many storie or account are related of the use to which its nusty cells, chambers, and under-ground dungeon were put. It is well known too, this by. Toos livel, the Filipine marry, was imprisoned there can lie last day before being led to his execution on the Old Lunctu on December 30, 1896.

The first Assiden flug was relead officially in Fort Santiago on August 13, 1898, and a plaque to commonante this eventral day rests atop the reap leading up to what is now Fort Santiago Theater, located at the Southwest corner of the Fort.

Since the reoccupation by American Forces the Fort has served 3s a Transportation Corps Depot, servicing all army vessels in this theator.

HISTORY OF FORT SANTIACO

In relating an account or brief history of Fort Santiago, we must go back to the twelfth century when the first fearless marinor discovered a chain of islands across the Chi ma sea inhabitated by "Sarscans". He reported these as peace ful neople, but the next account of them tells of Sulu pirate and "savages" who lived by fighting and plunder.

Then Magallanes (Magellan) again discovered the Islan in 1521, he found a people who know how to fight, and lost hi life at their hands on Mactan Island near the Island of Cobu. On a second expedition heeded by Legaspi, a spanish settlemen was established on the Island of Cebu. Great difficulty was had in maintaining peace with the inhabitants, so when report was received of a large island called Luzon with a great bay and a sturdy people, Legaspi dispetched an expeditionary force under commend of Captain Fartin de Goiti and Juan de Salcado investigate. Then this expedition arrived in the year 1570 opposite the town of Manile, a rude but strong wooden palisad was already eracted by the natives at the south side of the mouth of the Posig River, and there were twelve bronze cannon of native manufacture, counted for the defense of the place.
All of this furnishes good ground for belief that Fort Santis go has a history that may be traced back asst the dawn of Modern Philippine history to the time when the first group of Malayans were gathered by the Pasig under the leadership of Mohemmeden Rajah, and built a log enclosure for defense again other peoples about them. The mouth of the river was always the strategic position of the whole country, and on that same spot Fort Santiago stands today as a monument to the Philipp Islands.

Accounts differ a little as to just what happened who selector's expedition sailed into the boy of Namila. Fr Juan de la Concencion says that Rajah Solimen rellied his forces and manned his twelve bronze guns in the peliseds and made a goodly defense of the place, but the besiegers were victoriound set in the to the city and afterward centure Cuvite. Another account states that surrender was made without opposite the common were centured and taken to Pensy, a treaty was and signed in blood by Selecdo and Rajah Soliman, and the expedition returned to Cobu.

Then Lessoi, adelanted or knicht-gopristor of the philippines, heard of the fine location and great bey of the he at once made oreparations to shift his headquarters, and in April 1571, he took the city, and found it empty, as the shabitants had fled after acting fire to their houses.

Legsmi soon placeted the Rajah, and on Mey 19, 1971 founded the city of Nomile, and the written history of Port Santiago began. The old palisade was at once strengthened, and the natives were commanded to build a well be place, and to creet quarters for the governor and the builde, but the work was not accomplished until the new governor. Santiago de Vore, seeing the need for more stoble protection them a wall of stakes, cleared the ground and laid the first atoms of the fort that bears his mame. These stones are still in the wall, though difficult to identify at the present time.

When Governor Dasmariras arrived in 1590 he brought instructions from the king of Spain to fortify the place so as to insure it against all attacks by land or see and at once set about the work. His first consturction was that of the circular well still standing in front of the parabet of the fort it-self. Fort Santiago was originally built by the Spaniards when they settled and built the town of Manila. Manile, as it was first laid out, consisted roughly of a triangular city, composed of the typical churches, homes, shops, etc. The entire city was enclosed by a wall rough. 20 feet in height and approximate by 10 to 20 feet in thickness at the base. The balls were surmounted by cuard walks to provide casy coverage for sentries. Bestions or gun positions were included in the general plan to provide complete enfelede or covering fire by artillery. The city was settled on the bay, now known as Manila Bay, and ordered by the Pasig River. The apex of the city was Fort Sentiago, situated so that it covered both the river mouth and the bay.
The geographical conditions of that day were somewhat different from the present time insofer as the boundaries of the bay are concerned. A student of military affairs today would be somewhat puzzled by the position of the Fort because the Bay is now some 1,000 yards distant. Nowever when the Fort was built the Pay came directly below the walls of the Wort on the South bordering roughly the line of what is now Bonifacio Drive, and the river, as it does now, ran directly below the opposite wall. At one time, a most completely encircled the lardward side of the Fort.

Fort Santiage, being the aper and main line of defense of the city was the center of Santian military activity in the old welled city, and as such was heavily fortified. Even today old solid shot cannon the new formed in a bundance around the Fort. Buring the times of the Spanish Inquisition, the dungeous of the Fort were used by the church tribunels for their infamous proceedings. As it is typical in all Spanish Forts, dungeous of me cell were revisited in abundance. The river (Pacig Miver) side of the Fort has called that the rise sheerly 35 feet above the river. These were the walls that housed the "water Cells, wange unfortunate prisoners were

placed in the evening at low tide, and removed again in the morning, dead thru drowning. All of these cells have now been sealed off but evidences of them can still be found despite the blastings of modern warfare.

"IA Real Fuerta de Santiago", (the royal stronghold of Santiago), as Governor Bararinas left ti, consisted of a straight groy front projecting into the river mouth. An open un platform above mas supported by arches and celled the "Battery de Santa Barbara", in honor of the patron saint of all good artillerists. A lower tier of fire was afforded all good artillerists, a lower tier of fire was afforded to the curtain walls without a comment formed by the arches. Simple curtain walls without facing the city. The comments were afterward filled in and the enbrasness closed and the curtain wall facing the city was changed to a battion.

Many strange stories have been told about the Spanish occupation of the Fort up to the time of the American occupation. Old Spaniards living in Manila shake their heads wisely and intimate that if they were to tell all they know, it would be an astonishing story indeed. How much they really know is a question, but certain it is that the people held a great fear of the old place. As far as the walls are concerned, there is some foundation for the stories. There are storerooms and magazines, and the outer curtains are connected with the main walls in some cases by underground passages, or were, before these tunnels were destroyed. The filling of the old most closed them, probably forever. When the wall at the end of Calle Aduana was removed, the inner chamber was found filled with human skeletons. There were however, under ground passages and deep-built cells in the fort itself. Then the Americans took charge of the Fort numerous lower passages and cells, some considerably below the level of the water in the river, were discovered. There was also a movable gate by which the water could be admitted from the river, and all the evidence pointed to the use of these cells in the same manner and for similar ends as such devices were used in Europe at the contemporary period; that is, for the harsh handling of enomies of the king. There are many people who affirm that there are underground pessages leading "Back as far as the old army and Navy Club", but not one knows where to find the secret door to the hidden chambers. There are many of the oninion that slave labor, procured from raids on small native villages were used in the building and construction of the Fort and Walled City, and that these laborers were either worked to desth or killed upon completion of the work, so that they might not reveal the secret of the underground passages and cells.

Authority NNO 883078

of some of the stories told, is the one of a woman welled up in one of the lower chambers with a beby born the day she entered. Then the Americans ones sixteen years later, they found her with her sixteen-year old child, who had never been outside the midnight cell. Americans could repolitical prisoner was to have been drowned, but in the catients of the events proceeding the surrender of the place having had no food for the Americans found him a raving maniac, have forgotten, and the Americans found him a raving maniac, having had no food for tweeks. In other chambers were found skeletons telling their gheatly tales with no need of commentary. Strange noises used to be heard at night, coming from these lover chambers, until the entrence thereto was walled up, and that chapter of shud forever closed.

Four flags have floated over Fort Sentisgo. For three hundred and twenty-eight years the Spanish energy outfuring to the tropic breeze, except for the brief time when the British flag supplanted that of the lords of the islands named after their discoverers and conquerors.

The unfurling of the third flag begins with the Aserican of Fort Santiago, on August 13, 1898, shortly after the Spanish-American 'for. Even in this short and comparatively quiet war, Fort Santiago played a major part that is no always fully appredicted. Bhen Admiral Deway sailed into Manila Bay, the Fort was one of the lone spots of resistance, firing, with our results, upon the American Squadron. It is not surprising that results were poor considering that solid shot was used against 'modern' battleshipe.

If Fort Santiago has no other cause for renown, the ever of 1898 would be reason enough to make it famous. In the inne court General Merritt met the Spanish Governor-Ceneral on the memorable 13th of August and arrenged the preliminary agreemen for the surrender of the Shemish citedel of the Orient. The American troops were in the city and the insurgents were outside, disappointed because they were not admitted to equal rights with the Americans. The Spaniards were disarmed, and the people lived in quaking terror of what the morning might bring, for the toles of what occurred when the British sack the city in 1762 were enough to cause a shudder. For a week no one ventured out of his house; but none of the terrible things came to pass. There was no pillage, no bloodsheds, no rapine nor plundering. The estonishment of the natives knew no bounds. Every American has reason to be groud of this e quest of old Fort Sentiago. After the American fleg raising ceremony a formal military review and parade was held, and the control of the Islands was turned over to the first American Governor-General of the Philippines, Grover Cleveland-Villian McKinley, later to become President of the United States.

In that period efter the War, Manile become one of the most important Foreign Army Posts. The headquesters of the Phillippine Section of the US Army was Port Sentingo. One of the first commanders of the Phillippine Beadquesters was Cemeral Arthur Maithur, father of the present Commanding General behavior bushess Command. The military features of the old of the was a post of the wall, and it was thought it would never be used as a fortress again.

Then case World Yer LI, the bombing of Pearl Herbor, and the informed arrival of Jenenese troops in Manile to place the Philippines under the rule of fourth rise The Ricing Sun. Uson this arrival of the Jenenese karge in Manile in Jenuary 1942, many officers of the U.S. Army in the Philippines were trapped in Port Scattings. The Jene were quick to appreciate the possibilities of the Mort, with its old torture chambers and dumerous, Meny a high renting American Officer was imprisoned here, many never came out from its walls ngain. However, the majority of the prisoners were those to be classified in the cetagory of mpolitical prisoners.

The Headquarters of the Filitary Police of the Philippines was in Fort Santiago, and its cells were soon packed solid with prisoners. Matives of Famila have called this "The Blood Stain of the Philippines". Here was the center of the highly coordinated and extremely efficient torture groups of the Jan nese Army. Cells were crowded and filthy. Drinking water was in abundance, but usually just out of reach of the prisoners. The "water cure" was a speciality here. (The forcing of water into the body thru the mouth or rectum). Beatings too, or suspension by the thumbs or toes. Not just rumored tortures, but facts substantiated by mon who suffered here for months. But those who are still alive to tell their stores are a distinct minority. If a PO' or Concentration Comp was too good for you, you went to Fort Sontiago. The number of men who died here cannot be calculated. Hundreds of bodies, decomposed beyond recognition, were burned when the American Forces moved into the Fort. Carmany had its incincretors at Bolson, and other in-famous camps; Santi so too has its burn't offcrings. One cell under the main bastion of the Fort was apparently used for this purpose, and even today in July of 1947, it may be seen with charred bones covering its floor to an unknown depth. Human ashes to a death of many feet. And behind it is another dung-eon, reached by an opening only 24 inches in size, and behind this still other cells, all of which still have the stench of death. The once magnificent Old Fort was left a mass of broken wreckage and twisted structures, littered with the bodies of dead Ja arese and Filipinos coverd over by debris. Even many months after the war with Japan had ceased, dead bodies

were being discovered in the rubble and ruins. The wells of the old Fort were pitted and broken, its buildings with very few exceptions are rome, and the ones left are no longer recognizable. The fracus old Spanieh Archway with its corner carryings still stands but has been demolished almost beyond a point of recognition. The trees, gardens, and all its beautiful landscaping is sone, but the old Fort, the Bloodstein of the Philippines is still here.

On 30 November 1946, Notional Heroes Day as dedicated by the Philippine Capublic, maidst ceremany and prayer, a Mational Monument was arceted inside Fort Santiago in the Area forwarrly occupied by the building serving as Questors and Detention Cells. (See part (2) of Legend). This monument was creeted above the buriel ground of some 600-700 bodies found throughout the Mort and in the cells and believed to be the bodies of Filiahos who died as a result of Jegenese treatment in Fort Santiago.

The Fort was first occupied as a personent hame by the Transportation Corps in New of 1945, and was designated as the TC Cenaral Depot red signated as the TC Cenaral Depot red signated as the Transportation Denot, FMINATOM is still occupying the Fort and performing its mission of supplying all army vessels in this theater with material necessary for occuration, under the guidance of its Commending Officer, it. Golphola. Annan Commendation of the Commending Officer, it. Golphola. Annan Commendation of the Commendation of

- (1) Manila Unit A. Major Nishimura's Office
 - B. Stairways
 - C. Adjutant's Office
 - D. Underground Cells
- (2) quarters Cells Investigation Room, electric torture room, hanging, water cure (There General Lin was tortured)
 - A. Detention Cell
 - B. Investigation Room water cure torture
 - C. Mess Hall (for Japs)
 - D. Corridor
 - E. Detention Cells
 - F. Detention Cells.
 - G. Detention Cells & Torture Room
- (3) Garage
- (h) Quarters and Infirmary and Cells Underground (There alleged 8 assailants of President Laurel were tortured to death)
 - A. Letention Cell
 - 3. Warters
 - C Infirmary
 - 3. Under ground and Second Floor Cells, torture Chamber, Investigation Room
- (5) Officers Quarters

- (6) Kitcher
- (7) Tagalog Class Rocu for Japs and Lecture Room
- (8) Aruh . Inside are day Quarter
- (10) Bath Ruse
- (10) Bath Ruse (11) Stable
- (12) Detention Cells 16 in all where the following were detained:
 - General Lim Cell No. 4
 - Gen. Grant Unknown, cell at Bldg. (12), Bldg. (15)
 - he occupied cell No. 1 prior to transfer Col. Alejandro Santos - Cell No. 1 occupied cell
 - No. 1 in Bldg. No. (15)
 - Col. Thorpe Cell No. 5 occupied cell No. 4 in Bldg.
 - Col. H. Straughn unknown cell occupied cell No. 1 in
 - bldg. No. (15) Col. Nakar & 11 Filipinos - Gell No. 13
 - Col. Makar & 11 Filipinos Cell No. 13 Col. Arthur King Noble - unknown cell
 - 2 -

Detention Cell, water cure

Ladies' and Men's bath, serves as torture chamber Adm Building - National Division - Office of Col. Nagahama and

Filipino informers. GROUND FLOOR - a,b,c,d,e, cells occupied prior to transfer to Bldg. (12) of Col. Straughn, Col. Santos, Col. Thorpe, Gen. Grant, Col. Nakar, Capt. Barker, Col. Noble, Martin Moses.

F. Quarters G. Offica

H. Toilet I. G: 200

(16) Charters

Tool Shad Hamair Shop

Sh.d

I were (Nor unagoner)

Guerahouse

Valetable threes grown by prisoners for Japs Vegetable laries grown by prisoners for Japs Versiable darker grown by prisoners for Japs

The fell wire priceners were brought to old Bilibid, then to Munting luga, and back to old Bilibid. Later on they were brought to the North Ge metars, their take will taknown:

Gen. Lim - (uncertain)

2. Gen. Grant 3. Col. Straughn 4. Col. Thorpe

5. Col. Nakar 6. Col. Martin Moses

7. Col. Arthur King Noble Capt. Barker

The Collowing survived:

1. Col. Santos

2. Menuel Elorisga 3. Antonio Quirino 4. Gabriel Mendoza

5. Dr. Bautista 6. Feliciano Pamintuan

7. Congressman Jesus Serrano

8. Lorenzo Lorma 9. Lucas Villacrucis

10. F. Lao

SOURCES OF INFORMATION: Former civilian prisoners, USAFFE officers and enlisted men, and guerillas.

GATE OF FORT SANTIAGO

Unon entering into the original Fort Santiago, as first completed by the Spaniards, can be viewed the remains of what was once the beautiful archway or Gate, leading into the old fortress. It is truly sigmificant as an Arch do Triumphe as the armies of every conquering nation has passed beneath it's magnificence. The beauty of it's situation, the richness of it's architectural treasure and the enchantment which proceeds from it's past grandeur, can with regret, be viewed in a state of destruction and decay. The attached sketch shows in outline only, the archway as it appeared several years ago, a perfect reminiscence of the grandeur of Spain three centuries ago. In the tower of the arch is engraved the Patron Saint of Spain, "Santiago de Apo tol", after whom the Fort was named. The famous Patron can be seen riding on his charger ready to give the final blow to his vanquished foes. In the center of the arch is the Coatof-Arm of Spain, which is the symbol of colonization and Spanish dominance three centuries ago. On each side of the arch is depicted a Spanish soldier and a lion, a true symbol of the strength and power of Spain during the height of her glory.

Authority UND 883078

-AGRD

RET OF PAID CIV GRLA & USAFFE CLAIMS

FORT SANVIAGO, HISTORY OF

DECLASSIFIED
Authority UND \$83078

MISC - 13